
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Friday, 3 September 2021.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 
 

Monday, 13 September 2021 at 10.30 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House, St. Peter's 

Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 
Cabinet 
Members: 

 
Councillor Mark Whittington (Chairman) 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor David Bellamy 
Councillor Paul Fellows 
Councillor Breda-Rae Griffin 
Councillor Susan Sandall 
Vacancy 

 
 

 

Agenda 

1.   Apologies for absence  
   

2.   Disclosure of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 

meeting. 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2021 (Pages 3 - 5) 
   

4.   Review of the Council's Constitution 
The Constitution Committee is invited to consider the attached draft report to 

Full Council, as agreed at the last meeting of the Committee. 

(Pages 7 - 13) 

5.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 

 

   

Constitution 

Committee 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Meeting of the 
Constitution Committee 
 
Monday, 19 July 2021, 10.30 am 
Council Chamber – South 
Kesteven House, 
St Peter’s Hill, Grantham. NG31 
6PZ 

 

 

 
Committee Members present 
 
 
Councillor Mark Whittington (Chairman) 

 
 

Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor David Bellamy 
Councillor Breda-Rae Griffin 
Councillor Susan Sandall 
 

 

Officers present  
 
Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 
Graham Watts (Head of Democratic 
Services) 
Shelley Thirkell (Acting Principal 
Democratic Officer) 
Alice Atkins (Local Government 
Association Graduate) 

 

 

 
8. Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Mike Exton and 
Councillor Paul Fellows. 
 

9. Disclosure of interests 
 
No disclosure of interests were made. 
 

10. Minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2020 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2020 were agreed as a 
correct record. 
 
 

3

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

11. Review of the Council's Constitution 
 
The Head of Democratic Services presented to the Committee a report which 
summarised the purpose of an ongoing review of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
The Constitution had been amended over the past few years, meaning it had 
evolved to the point where some parts contradicted others and where some of 
the information included was now outdated. This had meant that the document 
required a comprehensive review to make it easily understandable to 
Members, officers and members of the public. The main aspect that required 
refining was the Scheme of Delegation. It was noted that clarity would need to 
be made regarding decision-making with lines of authority also needing to be 
made clearer. The purpose of the review would be to make the document as 
open and transparent as possible, and that Member engagement would be a 
key part of this process. 
 
During discussion, Members made the following points: 
 

• One Member queried as to why the minutes from a previous workshop 
of the Committee had not been circulated. 

 
It was noted that discussions made in the context of informal working groups 
were not usually made available in the public domain and so would not be 
published as a set of minutes. It was agreed that going forward, notes would 
be kept on what had been discussed during Working Party meetings. 
 

• Members agreed that due to the length of the document, the best way 
to conduct the full review would be to separate it into sections. 

• It was agreed the Committee begin the review by reviewing the 
Responsibility for Functions section first. 

• It was suggested that a road map of the review be developed to 
measure progress. 

• It was suggested that a glossary of terms be appended to the 
document. 

• It was agreed that the Constitution be reordered into an accessible, 
user-friendly format, as set out in the report and that this be proposed 
to a meeting of Full Council in the Autumn for an ‘in principle’ decision. 
It was suggested that an additional meeting of the Committee take 
place prior to a meeting of Full Council. 

 
It was emphasised that the purpose of the review would not be to change 
decision-making powers, but to make it clearer how decisions were currently 
made and by whom. It was acknowledged, however, that some changes may 
be required as part of the review or by other reviews such as the planning 
review, peer review and scrutiny review. Recommendations arising from these 
reviews would be reported and proposed to the Committee separately. 
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED: 

4



3 
 

 
(1)  That an additional meeting of the Constitution Committee be 

held in early September to consider a draft report to the Council 
on the Constitution review. 
 

(2)  That the report to Council includes a recommendation to adopt 
a revised format of the constitution, set out in paragraph 1.4 of 
the report. 

 
(3)  That the proposed process to be followed for undertaking and 

implementing a comprehensive review of the Council’s 
Constitution, commencing with a review of the Scheme of 
Delegation, decision-making and responsibility for functions, be 
supported. 

 
(4)  That the proposed engagement with senior officers and elected 

members as part of the review be supported. 
 

12. Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 

 
The Chairman referred to the Planning Review Report which was due to be 
discussed at the upcoming Governance and Audit Committee meeting. It was 
noted that the Planning Review Report would have a potential impact on the 
review of the Council’s Constitution. The Chairman requested that an update 
on the potential ramifications of the Planning Review Report be provided to 
the Committee during the Autumn meeting. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive confirmed that a Scrutiny Review would not take 
place until mid-September, and that an update would be provided to the 
Committee following this.  
 
The Chairman closed the meeting at 11:53. 
 

5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Council 
30 September 2021 

Report of: Councillor Linda Wootten 

  Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Governance 

           

 

Review of the Council’s Constitution 

This report sets out the proposed process to be followed for undertaking and implementing a 
comprehensive review of the Council’s Constitution. 

 

Report Author 

Graham Watts, Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer 

 
07717 508013 

 graham.watts@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Graham Watts, Deputy Monitoring Officer 3 September 2021 

Approved by: Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive  3 September 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Governance  

3 September 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

 
That Council: 
 

1. Approves, in principle, the revised format of the Council’s Constitution based on 
seven main sections as set out in paragraph 1.4 of the report. 
  

2. Approves the proposed process to be followed for undertaking and implementing a 
comprehensive review of the Council’s Constitution, commencing with a review of 
the proposed Responsibility for Functions section, to include Financial Procedure 
Rules and Contract Procedure Rules. 
 

7

Agenda Item 4

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

3. Approves the proposed engagement with senior officers and elected members as 
part of the review, and respective proposed timescales as set out in paragraph 1.10 
of the report. 
 

 
 

8



 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The Local Government Act 2000 placed a duty upon Local Authorities operating executive 

arrangements to maintain a document and ensure that it is available for inspection by 

members of the public. This should set out how an Authority operates, how decisions are 

made and the procedures which are followed to ensure that these are efficient, 

transparent and accountable to local people. 

1.2 A model Constitution was available for Councils to adopt or use as the basis for their own 

document which could be amended to reflect aspects or characteristics unique to a 

particular Local Authority.  

1.3 Since the initial adoption of South Kesteven District Council’s Constitution, a number of 

subsequent amendments have been made to the document. Unfortunately, over time, 

there are now a number of inconsistencies, contradictions and areas open for 

interpretation that need addressing to greatly improve the document and provide a better 

platform for decision-making and accountability. 

1.4 An initial review of the Constitution was recently undertaken, further to which a revised 

format has been proposed which reverts back to that recommended as part of the original 

model Constitution. This provides a better structure for the document and reduces the 

number of articles and sections currently included in the Council’s Constitution, splitting 

the document into the following sections: 

1) Summary and Explanation 

2) Articles of the Constitution 

3) Responsibility for Functions 

4) Rules of Procedure 

5) Codes and Protocols 

6) Members’ Allowances Scheme 

7) Management Structure 

1.5 Council is asked to agree, in principle, to this revised format as a basis for the 

comprehensive review of the Constitution.  

1.6 One of the sections most open to interpretation is that of the Council’s scheme of 

delegation, particularly in relation to its executive decision-making arrangements and 

which decisions can be taken by Cabinet, individual Cabinet Members or via delegated 

authority to officers. 

1.7 It is therefore proposed that the section ‘Responsibility for Functions’ be the first area of 

the Constitution subject to comprehensive review. 

1.8 The basis of reviewing this element of the Constitution will be to establish how the 

document is currently interpreted from the perspective of Cabinet, individual Cabinet 

Members, the Council’s Corporate Management Team and wider Senior Management 

Team, together with all elected members of the Council.  

1.9 The Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules form part of the 

Constitution and should link with the scheme of delegation, due to the financial thresholds 

associated with different levels of decision-making that sit within them. To ensure 

consistency between the new scheme of delegation in relation to executive decision-

9



 

 
 

making, it is proposed that the Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules 

be reviewed at the same time as the ‘Responsibility for Functions’ section of the 

Constitution. 

1.10 The review will consist of a range of informal meetings or workshops as part of developing 

a new ‘Responsibility for Functions’ section of the Constitution and Financial Procedure 

Rules and Contract Procedure Rules which will be clear, concise, transparent and easy to 

follow for anyone reading them. A proposed timetable for this aspect of the review is set 

out below: 

Meeting Purpose Timescale 

Individual meetings with 
Corporate Management 
Team and Senior 
Management Team 

To review the current 
scheme of delegation  

October 

Meeting with the Section 
151 Officer and Head of 
Finance 

To review the current 
Financial Procedure 
Rules/Contract Procedure 
Rules 

October  

Meeting with Corporate 
Management Team 

To review the current 
scheme of delegation and 
Financial Procedure 
Rules/Contract Procedure 
Rules 

October  

Individual meetings with the 
Leader and Cabinet 
Members 

To review the scheme of 
delegation relevant to 
respective Cabinet 
Portfolios 

October 

Individual meetings with 
Opposition Group Leaders 

To review the current 
scheme of delegation and 
Financial Procedure 
Rules/Contract Procedure 
Rules 

October 

Constitution Committee To review progress October 

Informal workshop with 
Cabinet 

To review the outcomes of 
previous meetings and 
consider draft versions of 
revised scheme of 
delegation and Financial 
Procedure Rules/Contract 
Procedure Rules 

October/November 

Informal workshop with 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Chairmen and 
Vice-Chairmen 

To consider draft versions 
of revised scheme of 
delegation and Financial 
Procedure Rules/Contract 
Procedure Rules 

 

 

October/November 

10



 

 
 

Informal workshop with 
Opposition Group Leaders 

To consider draft versions 
of revised scheme of 
delegation and Financial 
Procedure Rules/Contract 
Procedure Rules 

October/November 

Constitution Committee To review progress November  

Informal workshop for all 
Members 

To consider draft versions 
of revised scheme of 
delegation and Financial 
Procedure Rules/Contract 
Procedure Rules 

November/December 

Constitution Committee To review the outcomes of 
the workshop and agree to 
the submission of proposals 
to Council 

November/December 

Council To consider, in principle, 
the adoption of a revised 
Responsibility for Functions 
section of the Constitution 
and Financial Procedure 
Rules and Contract 
Procedure Rules 
 

27 January 2022 

Constitution Committee To reflect upon the review 
to date, consider the way in 
which remaining parts of 
the Constitution should be 
reviewed and agree a 
timetable 
 

February 2022 

Council (Annual General 
Meeting) 

To adopt the Council’s new 
Constitution 

26 May 2022 

 

1.11 These informal meetings or workshops will be an extremely important part of the review, 

ensuring that all members of the Council are able to contribute to the development of a 

new ‘Responsibility for Functions’ section of the Constitution, which will ultimately set out 

how the Council makes its decisions, together with a revised set of Financial Procedure 

Rules and Contract Procedure Rules. 

1.12 Once these aspects of the Constitution have been approved by Council, in principle, the 

remainder of the document can subsequently be reviewed. In many instances this will be 

an administrative process in terms of transferring and realigning parts of the existing 

Constitution into the revised format of the new Constitution, but taking the opportunity to 

undertake an element of housekeeping in terms of updating out of date information or 

addressing some contradictions throughout the document.  

1.13 It is envisaged that a similar process of engagement with members will be followed for the 

review of these subsequent sections of the Constitution to ensure that all Members are 

11



 

 
 

able to provide an input into the development of a new and improved version of the 

Council’s Constitution which is easy to understand and follow for anyone reading it.  

1.14 One element of the Constitutional review that will be considered separately by the 

Constitution Committee and, subsequently, Full Council are proposed changes to the 

Constitution as part of the Planning Review. Due to the specific nature of the 

recommendations included as part of the review which require Constitutional 

amendments, and the respective timetable for implementation, it has been agreed that this 

will sit outside the scope of the comprehensive review of the Constitution.  

1.15 It is anticipated that the changes considered as part of the Planning Review will be 

discussed initially by the Constitution Committee in October, with recommendations to 

Council being made by the Committee in November. The final version of the Constitution 

scheduled to be put before Council as a new version of the document at its Annual 

General Meeting on 26 May 2022 will incorporate any Constitutional amendments agreed 

by Council in relation to the Planning Review. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 Through informal discussions with elected members and officers, there is a clear need to 

review the Council’s Constitution as the current document is unclear, difficult to follow and 

interpret and includes a number of contradictions which need addressing.  

2.2 The Constitution Committee met on 19 July 2021 and 13 September 2021 and formally 

recommended the proposal set out in this report to Council. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 Option 1 - To undertake a comprehensive review of the Constitution but undertake this in 

sections. 

Option 2 - To undertake a comprehensive review of the Constitution in its entirety as a 

whole document. 

Option 3 - To retain the current version of the Constitution. 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 Option 1 - To undertake a comprehensive review of the Constitution but undertake this in 

sections, commencing with the ‘Responsibility for Functions’ section and Financial 

Procedure Rules/Contract Procedure Rules. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 The proposed format for the review ensures that necessary engagement with the 

Council’s Corporate Management Team, wider Senior Management Team and Members 

can take place in order that they can contribute to the meaningful development of a 

revised Constitution for the Authority.  

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 The proposed next steps and engagement plan for the review of the Constitution are set 

out in the body of the report.  

 

 

12



 

 
 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Section 151 Officer  

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 Legal and governance implications are set out in the body of the report. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Deputy Monitoring Officer 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 There are no equality or safeguarding implications arising from this report. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 The Council’s Constitution is the principal document setting out how the Authority 

operates, how decisions are made and the procedures which are followed. It is essential, 

therefore, that the document is easy to follow, understand and interpret which this review 

seeks to achieve.  

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 Not applicable. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

Not applicable. 

 

 

13



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2021
	4 Review of the Council's Constitution

